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Water Upgrades $ave — Program Operator RFP — Addendum 2 

1. When completing the cost exercise, do we assume Year 1 begins January 2021 or September 
2020? For Year 1, should we assume Sep 2020 to Aug 2021? Unclear since the end date is 
December 2022, will the contract be truncated, or will it be for a full 3 years? 

The RCPA is sensitive to the uncertainty of restrictions and safety considerations due to 
COVID-19. Therefore, the Cost Exercise is designed with Year 1, Year 2, etc. rather than calendar 
dates to accommodate the potential for a delayed Program launch. Ideally, Year 1 would begin in 
September. We have used the same non-calendar-year structure for the Program targets.  

The RCPA proposes the initial contract to run through December 31, 2022, to align with the 
California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC)/BayREN annual program cycle. This will result in a 
truncated 2020 (Year 1). However, the contract will allow for annual extensions that will be 
negotiated between RCPA and the Program Operator prior to the contract’s end.  

The Program is a hybrid project. It receives funding from the CPUC to establish the Program and 
to pay for lump-sum milestone activities. However, the pay-for-performance model is intended 
to be self-supporting and not restricted to the funding cycle of the CPUC. Therefore, the 
framework does not impose a funding limit on the growth of the program. 

2. Regarding multifamily, why do we assume 20 units within a property? 

This is an average based on the variability encountered in the multifamily (MF) projects 
completed during the pilot programs. Some properties were small (5-10 units) while others were 
upward of 100, with some new developments having an even greater number of units. This 
average has been used in planning and projections for this Program and so has been retained for 
the RFP. We expect the Program Operator will seek out larger, more profitable buildings. 
However, the Operator must be prepared to handle whatever number of units there are in the 
buildings of owners who seek to participate, either as Standard or DIY path. 

3. Can you provide a cursory review of Tasks A-F in the RFP? 

Please refer to the RFP, slides presented at the May 21, 2020, Proposal Meeting (now uploaded to 
the RCPA news page along with this Addendum #2, https://rcpa.ca.gov/about-rcpa/news/ ), the 
Program Manual, and other supporting documents for review.  
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4. Has the CRM been created or is that something that we would need to create? 

The CRM is in the development phase. The Program will also consider a Program Operator’s 
existing CRM with guaranteed rights to Program data. Please see Addendum 1, Question 2 for 
further detail.  

5. For the multifamily DIY pathway, is it possible to use Program Contractors for that site 
inspection instead of the Program Operator?  

The Program is open to considering the Proposer’s most efficient way to leverage your staff vs. 
contractors. The Proposer’s plan must avoid any perceived conflict of interest when using 
Program Contractors for inspections. For example, if a multifamily customer opts for the DIY 
pathway, the Program Operator must ensure that the contractor that conducted the site visit and 
provided the project scope is not the same contractor doing the post installation inspection.  

6. Will the monthly meetings be in person or remote? 

At least for Year 1, the Program intends all meetings to be held remotely in light of concerns 
related to COVID-19. If there are meetings that all parties agree need to be in person, we will 
identify public health best practices to establish acceptable meeting protocols.  

7. If someone submits a cost estimator worksheet, and they think they can do something 
more efficiently, can they propose a new scenario?  

At a minimum, the Proposer must submit one cost exercise completed per the current 
assumptions and terms. This first cost exercise should not be modified for content and simply 
completed to estimate the cost of the services listed. However, the Program would like for its 
activities to operate efficiently and effectively. We are open to alternate second cost exercises. 
We would prefer differences to be shown with as few modifications to the cost exercise template 
as possible. For example, activity additions or changes that the Proposer believes will align with 
Program goals would be acceptable modifications. In your proposal, please provide a narrative 
summarizing the reasons for the alternate cost exercise differences. 

Please also refer to Addendum 1, Question 7. 

8. Will this slide deck be available by Friday? 

The slide deck will be posted concurrently with the second Q&A Addendum to the RCPA news 
page. 
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9. What was the conversion rate of customers outreached to versus how many customers 
were enrolled in the pilot program? 

Water Upgrades $ave uses the Pay-As-You-Save® (PAYS®) program model, which has been used 
by 15 energy utilities around the nation over the past 20 years. Among these PAYS® programs, 
more than 50 percent of customers who received offers with costs and estimated savings 
decided to participate. The key is to be able to get an actual offer to interested customers. 
The Windsor Efficiency PAYS® pilot saw a 25 percent participation rate, principally among single 
family properties. This is the conversion rate used in the Cost Exercise single family pathway. 
The Green Hayward PAYS® pilot saw a participation rate of 14 percent, exclusively within the 
multifamily sector. This informed our 12.5 percent conversion rate used in the Cost Exercise for 
the multifamily pathways. 

The Cost Proposal Template includes what we think are very conservative estimates of the 
number of customers whom the Partner Utilities will forward to the Operator as prospects to 
meet Program customer participation targets. We are hoping experienced Proposers will 
propose marketing enhancements that dramatically increase the participant/prospect ratio.  

However, the Program Team cannot provide any more detailed answer to this question. The first 
BayREN pilots did not have a CRM designed to effectively track each customer inquiry or 
distinguish the specific type of outreach to which interested customers responded. We were 
trying myriad approaches to outreach, though we did not try an opt-out approach that assumes 
all informed customers will become participants unless they opted out of the program.  

10. Where in our proposal should we address the following evaluation criteria from page 10 in 
the RFP? 

 Qualifications of the Firm, including relevant experience with programs of this type (up 
to 10 points)  

 Experience delivering Program Operator or Administrator services for similar types of 
programs (up to 15 points), including:  

 Experience of firm and of key staff with administering a residential energy efficiency, 
water conservation, or energy project financing (which ideally includes comparable 
site-specific project assessments and customer service)  

 Experience of firm and of key staff working with contractor training, business 
development or lead sourcing, or other workforce development activity for building 
professionals  

 Conveys ability to implement a successful Water Upgrades $ave program (25 points) 
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These criteria will be evaluated based on the references provided, key staff resumes, and the 
scope of work’s ability to meet the needs of the Program as detailed in the RFP, addenda, and 
information sessions. Proposers with strong experience with successful similar programs should 
make sure they clearly explain the relevance of their experience in their proposals. 

11. Is it permissible for bidders to reference RCPA/BayREN/ABAG as the BayREN Team 
throughout proposal? Or should we use RCPA specifically when the RFP uses RCPA? 

Proposers (i.e., bidders) may use BayREN Team throughout the document. However, if the 
Proposer intends to direct certain activities or requests to a specific party, that party should be 
named. For example, if Operator requests a specific edit to the RCPA Standard Agreement for 
Consulting Services (Exhibit D of the RFP), then that request should be directed to RCPA. 

12. Page 19 of the RFP states “If Participant chooses the DIY pathway, send Program Intent to 
Participate Form and, upon receipt of signed Intent form, schedule, conduct or have a 
Program Contractor conduct an on-site screening for 100 percent of building units…”  
— Is this on-site screening the same as pre-installation inspections (specific to MF DIY)?  
Or does the Program Operator also need to complete pre-installation inspections on 
100 percent of MF DIY units? 

The on-site screening is the same as the pre-installation inspections.  


